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started, that this disagreement got to all this.  I'm sorry I 

went this far.   

Every day I have out in the real world, I shall continue 

to grow.  I'll continue to work.  I'll continue to put into 

society and help those who need it.  Three and a half years I 

spent on bail, there's been a lot of time for reflecting.   

And I think responsibility is a better word than fault at 

this point, but I take responsibility for what I have to.  And 

if this is my karma, then so be it.  

And that's all, sir.  

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  So what concerns me is, again, all of 

the uncharged misconduct.  There's enough material here to 

base a fair and appropriate sentence.  

THE COURT:  Thank you, Mr. Juskewitch.   

Mr. Toffolon, anything further?   

MR. TOFFOLON:  No, sir.   

THE COURT:  All right.  Well, the Court's had an 

opportunity to review the transcript from the trial.  Court's 

had an opportunity to review the laws.  Court's also had an 

opportunity to review the submissions of both the State and 

the defense and has taken all that into consideration.  And as 

both sides have stated with regard to the sentencing analysis, 

the Court is cognizant of the fact that it must perform what's 

called the Hewey analysis in order to determine what is an 

appropriate sentence here, which is a three-step process, 
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starting with a base sentence based on the conduct, moving on 

towards the base sentence determining a final sentence, when 

taking into consideration the aggravating and mitigating 

factors.  And then finally to determine what, if any, portion 

of that sentence should be suspended, and the defendant placed 

on probation.   

So in step one of this process, Court notes that the 

defendant is charged with elevated aggravated assault, causing 

serious bodily injury or I'm sorry, not charged -- he's been 

convicted of, following a jury trial, of the charge of 

elevated aggravated assault, causing serious bodily injury 

with the use of a dangerous weapon.   

The evidence from the trial shows that the defendant 

intended to kill Mr. Dale.  It was a statement made by the 

defendant when the he and Mr. Dale were confronting each 

other, that the defendant invited Mr. Dale to his house and 

warned him that if he showed up before 4:00, when his daughter 

was still there, that he would kill him and that his life 

meant nothing to him.   

The statements to the officers that -- during the 

interview -- that at one point he intended to -- he was 

shooting for center mass, and that would be consistent with a 

kill shot.   

Also, there was a firearm involved here.  Not only was it 

a dangerous weapon, but it was, in fact, a firearm.  There 
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were six shots fired.  The statement by the defendant was that 

the first three shots were fired as warning shots.  After the 

first three shots, he started to aim and using his sights.  He 

was aiming for center mass.  Center mass would be consistent 

with vital organs, greater potential for causing serious 

bodily injury or even death.   

The victim in this case, Mr. Dale, was unarmed.  He'd 

been coaxed to his house by the defendant and that the 

defendant was armed prior to Mr. Dale arriving at the house, 

because the gun was readily available to the defendant when 

Mr. Dale arrived.  This was intentional conduct, much more 

significant than any knowing conduct.  It was premeditated 

with a threat of violence.   

Defendant could have easily been charged with attempted 

murder here.  There was clearly an intent beforehand, when he 

told Mr. Dale that he would kill him if he showed up before 

4:00, and actually, he came within a hair's breadth of 

actually committing murder.   

I also analyze how these cases get from where they start 

to where they end up, and I oftentimes examine the different 

charges that could have been filed as the case progresses.  

The initial charge, when the threats were going back and forth 

on Facebook and text messages, which would be terrorizing, a 

Class D offense.  That would be where Mr. Woodard told Mr. 

Dale that he would kill him if he came to his house before 
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4:00.  Probably the likely consequence of that would be a 

fine.   

Then we move on to when Mr. Dale arrived in front of the 

defendant's house, and the defendant fired three shots to warn 

him.  That could be charged as a criminal, threatening with a 

dangerous weapon, which would be a Class C felony, carrying up 

to five years in prison.  His likely sentence for that would 

be in the range of probably three years, all but one, because 

of the minimum mandatory, with two years probation.  Or if 

something could have been negotiated, the firearm could have 

been deleted and something along the lines of three years, all 

but six months to nine months with two years probation.   

But yet we ended up with the elevated aggravated assault 

because, after the third shot, Mr. Woodard decided that he 

would now take aim to hit Mr. Dale with his weapon and 

certainly attempt to kill Mr. Dale, because he was coming in 

front of his house.   

Serious bodily injury here was that he sustained extended 

convalescence and substantial permanent impairment.  Mr. Dale 

testified at trial that he had been a marathon runner and now, 

three years later, he is on full disability.   

The results of this incident required immediate response 

from law enforcement.  When Mr. Dale and his friends left, 

they were headed towards Bangor for the hospital.  They came 

upon a deputy sheriff with the Penobscot County Sheriff's 
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Office.  Mr. Dale had lost a lot of blood.  The quick actions 

of the deputy resulted in him placing a tourniquet on Mr. 

Dale's leg.  And it's very possible that Mr. Dale could have 

died at that point.  Once at the hospital, it required 

emergency intervention from emergency staff.  

And the Court also notes that at least there's no 

evidence of any prior relationship between the parties before 

this incident occurred, what was motivated by mutual conduct.  

The testimony of Mr. Dale was believed by the jury that he did 

not go on the defendant's property.  He was maintained on the 

public right of way and clearly had not been on the 

defendant's property.  And there's also evidence that the 

defendant had consumed alcohol prior to the incident.   

So in looking at this conduct and coming up with a base 

sentence, the Court also checked comparables of prior cases to 

see what other courts have been imposing for sentences in 

similar type of conduct.  Finding comparables was difficult, 

because almost all the elevated aggravated assaults were 

charged with attempted murder, so the sentencings involved 

attempted murder as well as elevated aggravated assault.   

But in State v. Reese in 2010, defendant was charged with 

attempted murder and elevated aggravated assault, both Class A 

crimes.  The defendant was a felon.  He had a .9 mm, pistol 

shot at his girlfriend nine times, hitting her twice, left her 

laying by the side of the road.  She received life threatening 
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injuries and extended convalescence.  The base sentence for 

that Court was 27 years.   

Another case that the Court was able to find was State v. 

White out of Aroostook County in 2019.  In this case, it was 

an attempted murder Class A, robbery Class A and elevated 

aggravated assault Class A.  In that case, the defendant went 

to a rival drug dealer's house at 3:30 in the morning, wearing 

a mask, with the intent to kill.  A gun battle ensued.  The 

victim was shot four times, once in the arm, twice in the 

abdomen and once in his Kevlar vest.  If it wasn't for swift 

action by law enforcement in this case, the victim surely 

would have died.  The base sentence in this was between 20 and 

25 years.   

So in taking the comparables in mind, as well as the 

conduct here that's specific to this case, the Court agrees 

with the defendant that the base sentence would be 15 years, 

which would put it in the lower to middle of the end of the 

middle quadrant.   

Step two would be determining the final sentence by 

examining the aggravating versus mitigating factors.  First 

aggravating factor the Court finds most significant would be 

the actual victim impact.  Mr. Dale will have long lasting 

significant consequences as a result of this.  He is now 

permanently disabled, when it appeared that at the time he was 

a healthy, vibrant young man.   
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Also, the defendant's age at the time of the incident is 

significant to the Court.  He was 30 years old at the time of 

the incident.  This was not a youthful indiscretion.   

He does have a criminal history from 2011.  He had a 

domestic violence assault and tampering with a witness from 

Kentucky.  And then he has a harassment by telephone here in 

Maine in 2019.   

And I know that Mr. Toffolon commented upon Mr. 

Juskewitch's statement in his sentencing memorandum about -- 

and refer to that as the defendant's lack of acceptance of 

responsibility.  But the Court finds that there was an actual 

statement by the defendant in the sentencing memorandum.  The 

Court does find that there was a lack of responsibility and 

remorse in that statement.  The Court's not finding that the 

fact that he had a trial is a lack of responsibility or 

acceptance of responsibility.  Defendant had every right to 

have a trial.  He exercised that right.   

But it's the statement that he makes in this sentencing 

memorandum that has the most concern for the Court.  He refers 

to it as a misunderstanding, and even today he continues to 

refer to it as a misunderstanding.  He blames the Bucksport 

Police Department for not taking it serious, indicates that 

what he should have done is got a protection from harassment 

order.  He also blames the defendant in his statement.   

He also advises the Court in his statement today that the 

A29



30 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

Court is -- it doesn't matter whether or not I believe the 

defense or I believe his statement, that I'm going to do what 

it is I'm going to do as far as the sentence is concerned.  

I'm not making any sort of belief.  I'm listening to what the 

jury tells me to do.  The jury has found Mr. Woodard guilty 

beyond a reasonable doubt of the offense of elevated 

aggravated assault.   

Mr. Woodard also makes another statement that the Court 

finds troubling is that it takes two to tango.  That might be 

true in the event of there was a fisticuffs, but there weren't 

fisticuffs here.  There was, as far as the Court is concerned, 

an intent to kill Mr. Woodard.  But that's not what the 

Court's sentencing him on.  The Court sentencing him on a 

Class A elevated aggravated assault.   

As far as mitigating factors are concerned, the Court can 

(sic) find, even with the statement of Deputy Chief 

Winchester, any violations of his bail.  He's been compliant 

while on bail.  According to the report from Dr. Thorpe, he's 

not likely to re-offend.  He's intelligent.  He has a long 

work history, and he has friends and coworkers that speak 

highly of him.  Also appears that he has a support system in 

place with his father and his mother.  So the Court finds that 

the mitigating factors outweigh the aggravating factors and 

put the base sentence at 12 years.   

Now, to determine whether or not probation is 
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appropriate, the defendant has complied with bail for three 

years.  There is evidence that he's not likely to re-offend, 

and he supports his daughter, to which he has a strong bond.   

The Court does find that the defendant would benefit from 

a period of probation where he could receive treatment for 

mental health, to receive treatment for substance use 

disorder.  The Court also notes that although in his 

sentencing memorandum, Mr. Juskewitch stated that the minimum 

mandatory four year sentence does not apply, the Court does 

find that the four year sentence does apply.  There was a 

firearm used against the person.  Clearly, the indictment 

states that.  There was a firearm, a handgun used against a 

person, Forrest Dale.   

So the Court finds that as a final sentence, sentence in 

this matter is twelve years to the Department of Corrections, 

all suspended but 5, with three years probation.  Special 

conditions of that probation would be no use or possession of 

alcohol or illegal drugs, including marijuana, unless he has a 

medical marijuana card, could send to random search and test 

for the use and possession of alcohol or illegal drugs, 

including marijuana.  And once again, unless he has a medical 

marijuana card, substance use disorder, evaluation, and 

treatment to the satisfaction of probation and parole, 

psychological evaluation and counseling to the satisfaction of 

probation and parole, no contact, direct or indirect, with 
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Forrest Dale, including his residence, school, business or 

place of employment, reside as directed by probation and 

parole.  And is there any restitution that's being asked for?   

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  No.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  Then a $10 a month victim supervision 

fee.  So that is the sentence of the Court.  Now, I suspect 

there's going to be an argument for post-conviction bail.   

Mr. Juskewitch.   

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  Yes.  This time, sir, it's 12-5-3 

(phonetic). 

THE COURT:  12-5-3.  

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  Thank you, Judge.  I've given you copies 

of the notice of appeal transcripts, motion to substitute Rory 

McNamara as the appellate attorney (indiscernible).  Oh.  

Application for sentencing --  

THE COURT:  Okay.  Do you have an argument for a post-

conviction bail?  

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  Oh, he certainly hasn't gotten into any 

significant trouble.  Apparently there was a mental health, 

but he's working.  He's on board ship a shipping house.  It's 

ground fishing and lobstering.  So he's earned, I think, post-

conviction bail.  

THE COURT:  Mr. Toffolon. 

MR. TOFFOLON:  The State disagrees.  That's why we asked 

Deputy Chief Winchester to come and describe, and the Court 
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correct?  

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, sir.  

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  I -- I -- I think it is missing, at 

least from my instruction, that the State also has the 

burden in this case of proving beyond a reasonable doubt 

that you were not in the exercise of self-defense.  Am I 

wrong?  I believe self-defense has been generated.

THE COURT:  I would say that the -- the 

self-defense -- Mr. Toffolon, you want to be heard on 

that?  

MR. TOFFOLON:  No.  

THE COURT:  Then I would say that there is 

sufficient evidence to raise the issue of self-defense.  

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  Which means they have to disprove 

that beyond a reasonable doubt.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  So you understand all of that?  

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand, sir.  

THE COURT:  All right.  And you're wishing to 

exercise your right not to testify?  

THE DEFENDANT:  That's correct, sir.

THE COURT:  All right.  Very good.  

Anything further, Mr. Juskewitch?  

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  No.

THE COURT:  Anything further, Mr. Toffolon?  

MR. TOFFOLON:  Yes.  While it's on my mind, speaking 
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lunch.  Start lunch now.  I want you back by 1:00, and 

then we'll start closing arguments.  I have to work on my 

instructions to give you, jury instructions, so this will 

give me time to get those together.  So, when you come 

back, I'll -- I'll read you the instructions, the 

attorneys will close, and then the case will be finally 

yours to deliberate.  

So, with that, you're going to have an hour and a 

half break.  Please don't discuss any of the evidence 

about the case or anything about the case at all until 

you get back and the case is given to you and you get to 

the jury room.  Okay?  Very good.  Thank you very much.  

(The jury left the courtroom at 11:36 a.m.)

THE COURT:  All right.  So counsel can be back at 

12:30 so I can -- you can review the -- the instructions.  

That will be great.

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT:  Thank you.  

(Court was recessed at 11:36 a.m. and was 

reconvened at 1:24 p.m.)

THE COURT:  Thank you very much.  You may be seated.  

All right.  So -- yes, you can actually put those over on 

the table over there.  You can -- I guess you can do 

that, or Ernie can do that.  

All right.  So, we've had an opportunity to review 
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the jury instructions; is that correct?  

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  That's correct.

THE COURT:  And they're acceptable to the defense?  

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  They are.

THE COURT:  Acceptable to the State?  

MR. TOFFOLON:  Yes, sir.

THE COURT:  And, Mr. Juskewitch, you wanted to put 

something on the record about one of the instructions 

that had -- is not in there and why you -- why you feel 

it's appropriate for it not to be in there?  

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  I'm sorry.  Which one?  

THE COURT:  Defense of premises.

MR. TOFFOLON:  104.  

THE COURT:  Defense of premises, 104?  You had said 

in chambers that you weren't asking for that instruction.  

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  Oh, yes.  Let me for the record -- 

thank you, Judge.  I just want to make sure -- and 

perhaps the Court will inquire of my client -- just a 

brief explanation.  I did anticipate that this would 

take -- would be a two-day trial.  I -- I did not 

adequately prepare for a one-day trial.  There are a 

number of things, exhibits.  One of them is a motion to 

open the evidence to accept De -- Joint Exhibit 1 -- 

that's a photograph -- without objection.  There are a 

number of other items.  But it turns out that items that 
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I had anticipated would be contested are not contested.  

One of the items, I've explained to my client, is 

Section 104, which is defense of property.  There 

certainly is some evidence in the case that the threat 

was made to commit arson.  Essentially, the same 

standards apply as in 108.  I've decided that it's in his 

best interests not to make the case seem more complex 

than it is, and, so, I'm not raising a 104 defense along 

with other items.  That's my judgment.  It's a strategy 

call.  It could be reviewed by others who would disagree 

with my strategy.  But, nevertheless, I have -- that's my 

call.  I've explained it to him, and I believe he accepts 

my judgment.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  Mr. Woodard, could I 

get you to stand, please?  You had an opportunity to 

listen to Mr. Juskewitch.  We were talking about jury 

instructions.  I don't know what your familiarity is 

with -- with jury trials, but the Court has to read 

certain instructions to the jury about what they're 

supposed to do.  One of the -- some of the instructions 

deal with specifically the law of -- what's called the 

law of the case.  And, so, sometimes facts generate 

certain instructions, and sometimes facts don't generate 

certain instructions.  

Mr. Juskewitch said that it's possible that I could 
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have included, if -- if he wanted, an instruction for 

defense of premises.  That's what he -- when he refers to 

104, that's Section 104 of the Maine Criminal Code, which 

defines what the defense of premises is.  He's decided 

not to do that.  He feels that he's -- he certainly has 

you covered and protected with regard to the self-defense 

deadly force instruction, which I'll be reading to the 

jury and what the State has to prove to overcome that 

defense.  

Do you understand all that?  

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, sir.

THE COURT:  You've had an opportunity to discuss the 

jury instructions and his decision not to ask for the 104 

as an instruction?  

THE DEFENDANT:  I have.

THE COURT:  And you're -- you're satisfied with 

that?  

THE DEFENDANT:  I am.  

THE COURT:  All right.  I also just want to add that 

sometimes when -- we did have plans for a two-day trial.  

Sometimes trials take on a life of their own.  They go in 

a different way than what you might expect them to go.  

Sometimes they go longer.  Sometimes they go shorter.  

But I've always -- I've done a lot of trials, 

Mr. Toffolon has, Mr. Juskewitch has.  I've always 
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considered them to be like a living, breathing thing.  

They go where they're going to go, and they're going to 

do what they're going to do, and we're just along for the 

ride.  

So, if you have nothing more, then we're -- I guess 

we'll accept your -- that you're satisfied with the 

instructions as they are.

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, sir.

THE COURT:  Very good.  Thank you.  

All right.  So I will introduce -- or I'll have 

both -- the two of you introduce Joint Exhibit No. 1.  

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  (Mr. Toffolon nodded his head up 

and down.)

THE COURT:  Okay.  I'll have the jury come in.  That 

will be the first thing we'll do, and then I will read 

the instructions.  All right.  

(The jury returned to the courtroom at       

1:29 p.m.)

THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you very much.  You 

may be seated.  

I want to thank you all for your patience.  I know I 

said 1:00, but it ended up being an extra half hour, but 

we were working on the jury instructions, and I -- those 

of you who were here yesterday and had the trial, you 

know how important it is that the jury instructions be 
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THE COURT:  All right.  Very good.  

So, ladies and gentlemen of the jury, this is my 

opportunity to speak with you.  When I'm finished, the 

attorneys will make their closing arguments.  I'll finish 

my instructions then, and then the case will be yours, 

and you'll begin your deliberations.  

As I told you in the beginning of the trial, your 

job is to find the facts, which means you will decide 

what happened in this case.  You will do that by 

analyzing the evidence and by determining what evidence 

you find believable.  You will reach your verdict by 

applying the law, and I will now explain to you the facts 

that -- you will reach your verdict by applying the law 

that I will now explain to you to the facts that you 

find.  

You should not be concerned about any consequences 

of any verdict that you may reach.  First, do not single 

out any one instruction alone as stating the law.  

Consider the instructions as a whole.  In your 

consideration, attach no significance to the order in 

which the instructions are given.  You must consider them 

all equally important, of equal priority, in applying 

them to this case.  

Second, nothing that I say in these instructions and 

nothing that I have said or done to this point in the 
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proceeding -- trial, no expressions on my face or 

anything like that, should be taken as any indication 

that I have any opinion about the facts of this case.  

The facts are for you and you alone to decide based on 

the evidence that was presented.  

You are to perform your duty in deciding the facts 

free from any passion, any prejudice, any sympathy, or 

any bias whatsoever.  

Let me remind you that the attorneys' opening 

statements and their closing arguments are not evidence.  

Those are simply statements and arguments of the 

attorneys for the State and the defendant in which they 

suggest to you what they think the proper methods for 

analyzing the evidence and what they believe are the 

proper inferences and conclusions to be drawn from the 

evidence.  The statements and arguments themselves are 

not evidence from which you can find these facts.  

During your deliberations, if your memory of the 

evidence differs from what the attorneys say in their 

statements and arguments, then it's your memory that 

controls.  

In addition, if, after an objection, I instruct -- I 

instructed you to disregard particular testimony, that 

testimony is no longer evidence even though you heard it.  

You will disregard that testimony, and you will not 
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consider it during your deliberations.  

Now, evidence in this case is the sworn testimony of 

the witnesses, regardless of which party called the 

witness to the witness stand, and the exhibits that have 

been introduced into evidence, regardless of which party 

offered the exhibits into evidence.  

Now, reasonable -- I want to talk to you about the 

difference between direct evidence and circumstantial 

evidence.  Reasonable inference is another term for 

circumstantial evidence.  There are two types of evidence 

from which you may find the facts in this case, direct 

evidence and circumstantial evidence.  Direct evidence is 

direct proof of a fact such as the testimony of an 

eyewitness.  Circumstantial evidence is indirect 

evidence, proof of a chain of facts from which you can 

find from another fact exists even though it was -- has 

not been proven directly.  In other words, if facts A, B, 

and C have been proven beyond a reasonable doubt and from 

those proven facts you can reasonably infer that fact D 

has been proven, as well, you are permitted to make that 

reasonable inference.  This is a process that we use 

every day.  

You can consider both types of evidence during your 

deliberations, both direct evidence and circumstantial 

evidence.  
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For example, if you go to bed tonight, and there's 

no snow on the ground, you wake up tomorrow morning, and 

there's a fresh blanket of snow.  You look out, and 

you'll see a set of footprints coming up to your walkway, 

to your door.  They go to your door, and there -- when 

you open the door, there's your morning paper.  You could 

reasonably infer that sometime during the night it snowed 

and that your morning paper delivery person had come up 

your walkway and delivered your newspaper to your door.  

You did not see or -- him or her do that, but that would 

be a reasonable inference that you would be permitted to 

draw from those set of facts.  

A verdict can be based entirely on circumstantial 

evidence, entirely on direct evidence, or a combination 

of circumstantial and direct evidence.  It is up to you 

to determine the weight to be given to any evidence.  The 

issue is whether there is sufficient evidence, 

circumstantial or direct or both, to prove the facts that 

must be proved by the State beyond a reasonable doubt.  

One of the most important things that jurors must do 

in any case is determine the credibility, which means the 

believability, of the witnesses who have testified.  

You're going to determine credibility by using your 

common sense, which means whatever the 12 of you have 

learned through your various life experiences.  There are 
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also a number of things you may want to consider in 

determining credibility or believability if you think 

they are appropriate to this case.  Let me suggest some 

things that you may want to consider if you find them 

appropriate to this case.  

You may consider each witness's age, experience, and 

intelligence.  You may consider the way in which 

witnesses testified on the witness stand.  You may 

consider whether the witness was forthright or evasive.  

You may consider whether the witness's testimony made 

sense.  You may consider whether on some prior occasion 

the witness made a statement inconsistent with his or her 

testimony in this case and, if so, how well the witness 

explained the prior inconsistent statement.  You may 

consider whether the witness's testimony was 

corroborated, which means supported, or contradicted by 

other evidence or by the exhibits.  You may consider how 

well each witness has remembered what took place during 

the time periods in question.  You may consider whether a 

witness had a good -- an opportunity to make the 

observations he or she said -- said were made.  You may 

consider whether a witness appeared to be biased in favor 

or against the State or the defendant.  You may consider 

whether a witness has been convicted of a crime.  You may 

consider whether there has been any evidence introduced 
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of any motive or lack of motive for a witness to ex -- 

exaggerate or lie.  Finally, you may consider what 

interest if any, each witness has in the outcome of this 

case.  

This is not a complete list of the things you can 

consider, but that is the type of process you will go 

through in determining the credibility or believability 

to give to the testimony of each witness.  

Inconsistencies or discrepancies in the testimony of 

a witness or between the testimony of different witnesses 

may or may not cause you to question such testimony.  Two 

or more persons witnessing an incident or a transaction 

may see or hear it differently.  And innocent 

misrecollections, like failure of recollection, sometimes 

happen.  In weighing the effect of any discrepancy, 

always consider whether it relates to an important issue 

or an unimportant detail and whether the discrepancies 

result from innocent or intentional falsehood.  

After you analyze the testimony, you may decide that 

you believe everything that a particular witness said.  

You may decide that you accept only portions of what a 

particular witness said, and you may reject the entire -- 

only a portion -- reject the remaining portions of the -- 

what the witness's testimony was, or you may decide that 

you believe nothing that a particular witness said.  
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Now, a case is not decided according to which side 

presents the most witnesses.  The testimony of a single 

witness is sufficient to prove any fact and would justify 

a verdict in accordance with such testimony even if a 

number of witnesses may have testified to the contrary 

if, after consideration of all the evidence, you believe 

that the single witness is more accurate and truthful.  

The truth is not which side brings the greater number of 

witnesses or presents the greater quantity of evidence 

but which witness and which evidence you find most 

accurate and otherwise trustworthy in determining whether 

the State's burden of proof has been met considering all 

the evidence in the case.  

Now, a defendant in a criminal case has the right to 

remain silent.  He or she does not have to take the 

witness stand and testify, and there's -- no presumption 

of guilt may be raised, and no inference of any kind may 

be drawn -- drawn from a defendant's choice not to 

testify.  The law never imposes upon a defendant in a 

criminal case the burden or duty of calling any witnesses 

or producing any evidence.  

Now, the marshal has some handouts.  I'm going to 

hand them out to you.  These are some of my instructions.  

These are the instructions that are specific to the law 

in this case.  I'm going to hand them out.  They're not 
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any more important than any of the other instructions 

that I give you, but I find it's easier for you to follow 

along when I read these instructions, and, when I'm done 

reading this portion of my instructions, I'll collect 

them back up again, but I will have one copy for the 

foreperson to take into the jury room with them if you 

have a -- want to refer to them while deliberating.  

Okay?

So I'm now going to give you some instructions 

regarding the specific crimes with which the defendant 

has been charged.  I am giving these instructions to you 

in writing not because they're any more important than 

any other instruction but because they may help you with 

some of the definitions that I'm about to give you.  You 

should consider all the instructions that I give you as a 

whole.  

First, beyond a reasonable doubt.  In addition to 

determining what evidence is credible, you will have to 

determine whether sufficient credible evidence has been 

introduced to prove whatever the State is trying to prove 

beyond a reasonable doubt.  That is the standard of proof 

in a criminal trial.  

Let me explain the standard of proof beyond a 

reasonable doubt.  First, note the word reasonable.  The 

State is not required to prove guilt beyond any doubt, 
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nor is the State required to prove guilt to a 

mathematical certainty.  The reason the State is not 

required to meet either of those two tests is that those 

two tests are almost always impossible to meet in any 

case.  Instead, the test is that of a reasonable doubt.  

A reasonable doubt defines itself.  It is a doubt based 

on reason and thought.  It is not frivolous or whimsical 

doubt.  It is a doubt which a person of sound judgment, 

after carefully weighing all of the evidence, would 

entertain as to the guilt of the accused.  

Put another way, proof beyond a reasonable doubt is 

proof of guilt sufficient to give you a conscientious 

belief that the charge against the defendant is almost 

certainly true.  

Now I'm going to define presumption of innocence.  I 

instruct you further that the burden of proof in this 

case is entirely on the State.  The defendant does not 

have to prove anything.  That means he does not have to 

prove he is not guilty.  As I said earlier, he does not 

have to testify.  He does not have to call any witnesses.  

The burden is entirely on the State.  

Throughout the trial, the defendant is favored with 

the presumption of innocence.  That means that each 

defendant, although accused, begins the trial with a 

clean slate and with no evidence against him.  That 
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presumption of innocence stays with the defendant all the 

way through the trial, into the jury room with you, up to 

the point, if you reach that point, where you are 

satisfied beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant is 

guilty.  If you do not reach that point on the charge, 

if you are not satisfied beyond a reasonable doubt that 

the defendant is guilty, then on that charge the 

presumption of innocence still exists and requires you to 

return a verdict of not guilty.  

Now, the law defines crimes in terms of elements or 

components, and the State has to prove each of these 

elements of a crime that is charged beyond a reasonable 

doubt before a person can be found guilty of the crime.  

To begin, the State must prove the defendant's state 

of mind at each time -- at the time of this incident.  In 

this case, to convict the defendant of elevated 

aggravated assault, the State must prove beyond a 

reasonable doubt that the defendant acted intentionally 

or knowingly.  

To convict the defendant of aggravated assault or 

assault, the State must prove beyond a reasonable doubt 

that the defendant acted either intentionally, knowingly, 

or recklessly.  So let's define intentionally, knowingly 

and recklessly.  

Under the intentional alternative, our law says that 
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a person acts intentionally with respect to a result of 

the person's conduct when it is the person's conscious 

object to cause such a result.  

Under the knowing alternative, our law says that a 

person acts knowingly with respect to a result of the 

person's conduct when the person is aware that it is 

practically certain that the person's conduct will cause 

such a result.  

Under the reckless alternative, our law says that a 

person acts recklessly with respect to a result of the 

person's conduct when the person consciously disregards a 

risk that the person's conduct will cause such a result.  

This disregard of risk, when viewed in light of the 

nature and purpose of his conduct and circumstances known 

to him must involve a gross deviation from the standard 

of conduct a reasonable and prudent person would observe 

in the same situation.  

On this question of proving a state of mind, I want 

to point out that there are rarely direct -- there's 

rarely direct evidence of the operation of the human 

mind.  We do not have cameras that can look into people's 

heads to photograph a state of mind.  You have to infer 

what the defendant's state of mind was at the time of the 

act from the surrounding circumstances.  You may consider 

any statements made by the defendant, both at the scene, 
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and before and after the act, along with other facts of 

evidence that shed light on his state of mind.  

Now, Count 1 alleges the crime of elevated 

aggravated assault.  The law in Maine provides that a 

person is guilty of elevated aggravated assault if the 

person intentionally or knowingly engages in conduct that 

in fact causes serious bodily injury to another person 

with the use of a dangerous weapon.  So, in order for the 

State to prove the defendant has committed elevated 

aggravated assault, the State must convince you beyond a 

reasonable doubt of each of the following facts:  First, 

it must prove beyond a reasonable doubt that on or about 

May 7, 2020, in Bucksport, Maine, the defendant 

intentionally or knowingly engaged in conduct that in 

fact caused serious bodily injury to Forrest Dale -- I -- 

just one moment -- with the use of a dangerous weapon.  I 

have already defined the terms intentionally and 

knowingly for you.  I want to clarify that the State 

doesn't have to prove beyond a reasonable doubt all three 

of these mental states.  It can be any one of the three 

alternatives.  Additionally, you do not have to agree on 

which state of mind the State has proven beyond a 

reasonable doubt, only that they've proved one of the two 

states of mind.  

I now want to define for you some other terms.  The 
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term serious bodily injury has a specific definition that 

we need to discuss.  Serious bodily injury is defined in 

our law as physical pain or physical illness or any 

impairment of physical conduct which creates a 

substantial risk of death and which causes serious 

permanent disfigurement, or loss or substantial 

impairment of the function of any bodily member or organ, 

or extended convalescence necessary for recovery of 

physical health.  So the State must prove beyond a 

reasonable doubt that defendant's conduct caused physical 

pain or physical illness or any impairment of physical 

condition of Forrest Dale which -- that part is not 

necessary for these proceedings.  Okay.  Third, the State 

must prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant 

was using a dangerous weapon.  

The term use of a dangerous weapon has a specific 

definition that we need to discuss.  Use of a dangerous 

weapon is defined in our law as the use of a firearm or 

other weapon, device, instrument, material, or -- or 

sub -- substance, whether animate or inanimate, which, in 

the manner it is used or threatened to be used, is 

capable of producing death or serious bodily injury as we 

have just defined that term.  

So, in summary, with these explanations in mind, let 

me summarize the law of elevated aggravated assault.  
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First, you must conclude that the State has proven beyond 

a reasonable doubt that on or about May 7, 2020, in 

Bucksport, Maine, the defendant intentionally or 

knowingly engaged in conduct that in fact caused serious 

bodily injury, as we have defined that term, to Forrest 

Dale and that, finally, the defendant was using a 

dangerous weapon, your verdict on the charge of elevated 

aggravated assault would be guilty.  If the State has 

failed to prove any of those facts beyond a reasonable 

doubt, your verdict on the charge of elevated aggravated 

assault would be not guilty.  

Now, Count 2 alleges the crime of aggravated 

assault.  The law in Maine provides that a person is 

guilty of aggravated assault if he intentionally or 

knowingly or recklessly causes bodily injury to another 

person with the use of a dangerous weapon.  So, in order 

for the State to prove that the defendant has committed 

aggravated assault, the State must convince you beyond a 

reasonable doubt of each of the following facts:  First, 

it must prove beyond a reasonable doubt that on or about 

May 7, 2020, in Bucksport, Maine the defendant caused 

bodily injury to Forrest Dale with the use of a dangerous 

weapon.  The terms intentionally, knowingly, and 

recklessly, and the use of a dangerous weapon have 

already been defined for you.  I now want to define the 

112

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

A56



term bodily injury, which has a specific definition that 

we need to discuss.  

Bodily injury is defined in our law as physical pain 

or physical illness or any impairment of physical 

condition.  So the State must prove beyond a reasonable 

doubt that the defendant caused physical pain or physical 

illness of any -- or any impairment of physical condition 

to Forrest Dale.  Second, the State must prove beyond a 

reasonable doubt that the defendant caused the bodily 

injury to Forrest Dale with the use of a dangerous 

weapon.  

So, now, in summary, with these explanations in 

mind, let me summarize the law of aggravated assault.  

First, if you conclude that the State has proven beyond a 

reasonable doubt that on or about May 7, 2020, in 

Bucksport, Maine, the defendant intentionally, knowingly, 

or recklessly caused bodily injury with the use of a 

dangerous weapon, as we have defined those terms, to 

Forrest Dale, your verdict on the charge of aggravated 

assault would be guilty.  If the State has failed to 

prove any one of those facts beyond a reasonable doubt, 

your verdict on the charge of aggravated assault would be 

not guilty.  

Moving on to Count 3, which alleges the crime of 

assault, the law in Maine provides that a person is 
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guilty of assault if the person intentionally or 

knowingly or recklessly causes bodily injury or offensive 

physical contact to another person.  So, in order for the 

State to prove that the defendant has committed assault, 

the State must convince you beyond a reasonable doubt 

each of the following facts:  First, it must prove beyond 

a reasonable doubt that on or about May 7, 2020, in 

Bucksport, the defendant intentionally, knowingly, or 

recklessly caused bodily injury or offensive physical 

contact to Forrest Dale.  I have already defined the 

terms intentionally, knowingly, and recklessly.  I now 

want to define the term bodily injury and offensive 

physical contact, which have specific definitions that 

you need to discuss.  

Bodily injury is defined in our law as physical pain 

or physical illness or any impairment of physical 

condition.  Offensive physical contact essentially 

defines itself.  It means physical contact which would be 

offensive to a reasonable and prudent person in the 

circumstances of Forrest Dale, as you find those 

circumstances to be.  

So, the State must prove beyond a reasonable doubt 

that the defendant intentionally, knowingly, or 

recklessly caused physical pain or physical illness or 

any impairment of physical condition to Forrest Dale, or, 
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alternatively, the State must prove beyond a reasonable 

doubt that the defendant caused offensive physical 

contact to Forrest Dale.  

So, now with this -- these explanations in mind, let 

me summarize the law of assault.  First, if you conclude 

that the State has proven beyond a reasonable doubt that 

on or about May 7, 2020, in Bucksport, Maine, the 

defendant intentionally, knowingly, or recklessly caused 

either bodily injury or offensive physical contact, as we 

have defined those terms, to Forrest Dale, your verdict 

on the charge of assault would be guilty.  If the State 

has failed to prove any one of those facts beyond a 

reasonable doubt, your verdict on the charge of assault 

would be not guilty.  

Now, with respect to cause, the State must prove 

beyond a reasonable doubt that the serious bodily injury 

or the bodily injury or the offensive physical contact 

would not have occurred without the conduct of the 

defendant.  

Now, if you determine, in accordance with the 

previous instructions, that the elements of either 

elevated aggravated assault, aggravated assault, or 

assault have been proven beyond a reasonable doubt, you 

must next consider the issue of self-defense.  

In certain circumstances acts that otherwise might 
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be criminal, including, in a few instances, use of deadly 

force, may be justified when reasonably necessary to 

protect an individual.  Deadly force is physical force 

that a person uses with the intent of causing or which he 

knows causes a substantial risk of causing death or 

serious bodily injury.  

A person is justified in using deadly force upon 

another person when he reasonably believes that the other 

person is about to use unlawful deadly force against him 

and he reasonably believes that his use of deadly force 

is necessary to defend himself.  

A person is never justified in using deadly force if 

he provokes the encounter leading to use -- the use of 

the deadly force or if he knows that he can retreat from 

the encounter with complete safety.  

Because the evidence gen -- generates an issue of 

whether the defendant acted in self-defense, to -- to 

support a conviction of either elevated aggravated 

assault, aggravated assault, or assault, the State must 

prove beyond a reasonable doubt that with a purpose to 

cause physical harm to another person, the defendant 

provoked the encounter, or the defendant knew he could 

retreat in complete safety from the encounter from -- 

with Forrest Dale, or the defendant knew that Forrest 

Dale was not about to use deadly force against him, or 
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the defendant knew that his use of deadly force was not 

necessary to defend himself.  

If you find that although the issue of self-defense 

is presented, the State has proven any one or more of the 

above facts, A, B, C, or D beyond a reasonable doubt, 

then the State has met its burden of proving the absence 

of self-defense and you should find the defendant guilty 

of either elevated aggravated assault, aggravated 

assault, or assault.  If you -- if the State has failed 

to prove any one of the facts -- any one of the facts of 

A, B, C, or D beyond a reasonable doubt, then the State 

has not met its burden of proving the absence of 

self-defense and you should find the defendant not guilty 

of the charges of elevated aggravated assault, aggravated 

assault, or assault.  

All right.  I am -- if you want to hand those back 

to the marshal.  

And, actually, Mr. Foreperson, I said I'd let you 

hold on to one.  There's a typo, so I'm going to fix 

that, and then I'll send that back in the jury room.  

I'm now going to turn the courtroom over to the 

attorneys so they can give you their closing arguments.  

Because the State has the burden, they go first.  When 

the defendant's attorney is done, the State will have an 

opportunity to rebut anything brought up by defendant's 
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So with those corrections to the status of the law, 

at least as the State sees them, and with those comments 

about the facts, at least as the State sees them, the 

State will end its discussion with you finally by again 

resorting to the picture.  How can anyone argue that when 

you're shot in the buttocks you're being shot from the 

side?  Go into the jury room.  Collectively discuss this 

case.  If you're shot from the side, you're shot here in 

the hip.  You're not shot in the butt.  

Mr. Woodard is guilty.  Thank you.  

THE COURT:  Thank you, Attorney Toffolon.  

All right.  Because I -- when I gave you the 

instructions with regard to elevated aggravated assault, 

there was a typo in them -- and I will fix that typo -- I 

want to re -- review those -- that instruction 

specifically just so that you can hear it from me and 

it's clear.  So, once again, I'm going to repeat the 

instruction of elevated aggravated assault.  It has 

nothing to do with anything that any -- either attorney 

said.  It's just because I want to make sure that you're 

clear on what that instruction is.

Count 1 alleges the crime of elevated aggravated 

assault.  The law in Maine provides that a person is 

guilty of elevated aggravated assault if the person 

intentionally or knowingly engages in conduct that in 
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fact causes serious bodily injury to another person with 

the use of a dangerous weapon.  

So, in order for the State to prove that defendant 

has committed elevated aggravated assault, the State must 

convince you beyond a reasonable doubt of each of the 

following facts:  First, it must prove beyond a 

reasonable doubt that on or about May 7, 2020, in 

Bucksport, Maine, defendant intentionally or knowingly 

engaged in conduct that in fact caused serious bodily 

injury to Forrest Dale with the use of a dangerous 

weapon.  

I have already defined the terms intentionally and 

knowingly.  I want to clarify that the State doesn't have 

to prove beyond a reasonable doubt all of these mental 

states.  It can be any one of these alternatives.  

Additionally, you do not have to agree on which state of 

mind the State has proven beyond a reasonable doubt, only 

that they proved one of them.  

I now want to define the other terms.  The term 

serious bodily injury has a specific definition that I 

need to discuss.  Serious bodily injury is defined in our 

law as physical pain or physical illness or any 

impairment of physical condition which creates a 

substantial risk of death or which causes serious 

permanent -- causes serious permanent disfigurement, or 
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loss or substantial impairment of any function of any 

bodily member or organ, or extended convalescence 

necessary to recover -- for the recovery of physical 

health.  So the State must prove beyond a reasonable 

doubt that defendant's conduct caused physical pain or 

physical illness or which impaired the physical condition 

of Forrest Dale which created a substantial risk of death 

or which caused serious permanent disfigurement, or loss 

or substantial impairment of a function of any body 

member or organ, or which required extended convalescence 

necessary for recovery of physical health.  

Third, the State must prove beyond a reasonable 

doubt that the defendant was using a dangerous weapon.  

The term use of a dangerous weapon has a specific 

definition and that need -- that we need to discuss.  Use 

of a dangerous weapon is defined in our law as the use of 

a firearm or other weapon, device, instrument, material, 

or substance, whether animate or inanimate, which, in the 

manner it is used or threatened to be used, is capable of 

producing death or serious bodily injury as we have just 

defined that term.  

So, in summaries, with these explanations in mind, 

let me summarize the law of elevated aggravated assault.  

First, if you conclude that the State has proven beyond a 

reasonable doubt that on or about May 7, 2020, in 
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Bucksport, Maine, the defendant intentionally or 

knowingly caused -- I'm sorry -- engaged in conduct that 

in fact caused serious bodily injury that -- as we have 

defined that term to Forrest Dale and that, finally, the 

defendant was using a dangerous weapon, your verdict on 

the charge of elevated aggravated assault would be 

guilty.  If the State has failed to prove any one of 

those facts beyond a reasonable doubt, your verdict on 

the charge of elevated aggravated assault would be not 

guilty.  

So, once again, that's just to clarify -- because 

there was a typo, just to clarify the instruction with 

regard to elevated aggravated assault.  

Now, before I continue, I want to discharge the 

alternates.  As you know, we select an alternate or 

alternates so that we would not have to try the case 

again if something happens to one of the original jurors.  

Fortunately, nothing has happened in this case.  The 

alternates are selected on the basis of the order in 

which their juror numbers are selected during the jury 

selection and not for any other reason.  

So, Juror 120 and Juror 123, you have been selected 

as the alternates in this case before it began.  I'm 

sorry that you will not have a chance to decide the case 

with your fellow jurors, but I want to thank you for your 
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participation and listening carefully as you did, and so 

now you are free to go.  If you have anything in the jury 

room, you can go pick it up.  

You -- are you on -- either of you on any other 

juries?  

ALTERNATE JUROR:  No.

ALTERNATE JUROR:  No.

THE COURT:  No?  You don't have any other juries, 

sir?  

ALTERNATE JUROR:  No.

THE COURT:  How about you?  

ALTERNATE JUROR:  (The alternate juror shook their 

head from side to side.)

THE COURT:  Neither are you either?  Okay.  So 

you are free to go, and you're discharged from your 

service.  And I want to appreciate -- tell you how much I 

appreciate you coming in and performing your duty as 

jurors.  Thank you very much.  

(The alternate jurors left the courtroom at 

2:45 p.m.)

THE COURT:  All right.  Now that there are 12 of you 

remaining, in order to return a verdict, all 12 of you 

must agree on the verdict.  The verdict must be 

unanimous.  Each of you must decide the case for yourself 

but only after an impartial consideration of the evidence 
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with your fellow jurors.  

During the deliberations, you should not hesitate to 

change your mind if the arguments of your fellow jurors 

convince you that your initial analysis or conclusions 

were incorrect.  On the other hand, you should not give 

up a well-reasoned, well-thought-out belief simply 

because you want to end the deliberations or because you 

stand alone.  

You should not be concerned about how long it takes 

to reach a verdict.  Some verdicts can be returned 

quickly.  Others take longer.  The length of deliberation 

depends on how difficult you find the determination of 

credibility and the determination of the facts to be.  As 

I have told you in these instructions, deciding 

credibility and deciding the facts are your jobs as 

jurors.  You do not have an opinion on the -- I do not 

have an opinion on these issues.  Please do not consider 

anything I may have done during the course of this trial 

as suggesting that I do have an opinion on the facts or 

the credibility of the witnesses.  My job is to determine 

the law that applies to this case.  I have given you the 

law as I received it from the Maine Legislature and from 

the Maine Supreme Judicial Court.  Whether you like or 

agree with the law is not relevant to your deliberations 

or to your verdict.  It would be a violation of your oath 
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as jurors to base a verdict on anything other than the 

law as I have instructed you.  

You cannot allow your emotions or any feelings of 

prejudice or sympathy that you might have developed 

during the course of this trial to play any part in your 

verdict.  You have a duty to be businesslike.  In as 

businesslike and as analytical a way as possible, you 

will decide credibility and the facts.  You apply those 

facts to the law I have given you, and you will give us 

your verdict.  If you do all of that in a businesslike, 

analytical way, you will be doing justice, and that is 

what everyone in this courtroom wants you to do.  

Now, Juror 74, as you know, you are the foreperson 

of this jury, and you're going to take over now.  Your 

vote is not worth any more than any of the other jurors', 

obviously, but it is your job in the jury room to 

organize the deliberations and to see that they run 

smoothly.  

During the deliberations, there is no obligation on 

the part of any juror to say anything at all on a 

particular issue if he or she chooses not to speak.  Each 

juror's only absolute obligation is to vote on the 

verdict.  On the other hand, any juror who wants to speak 

on any issue has the right to do so completely and be 

fully heard.  It is your job as foreperson to make sure 
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that each juror has that opportunity.  It is also your 

job to decide when to take a vote or votes on a verdict.  

I am sure that you will listen to the recommendations of 

your fellow jurors when making those decisions.  

During your deliberations, if you cannot agree on 

the testimony of a particular witness or on the 

instructions that I have given you in writing, and you 

would like to rehear testimony or the instructions, 

please write a note to me as precisely as you can 

describing the portion of the testimony or the 

instructions you wish to rehear.  The jury officer will 

deliver the note to me.  If you agree with -- if I agree 

with you that it is important, I will reassemble you in 

the courtroom, and the court reporter will read the 

requested testimony, or I will read or give you the 

requested instructions.  

I am sure you will find that your collective memory 

of the testimony and instructions will exceed your 

individual memories, and you will give -- can fill any 

gaps in the testimony or instructions for each other.  

So if I can meet with counsel at sidebar.  

BENCH CONFERENCE 

THE COURT:  Any corrections or additions?  

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  Yes, Your Honor.  Because of the 

recharge -- 
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THE COURT:  Yep.

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  -- on the elevated aggravated 

assault, I think there's potential confusion about the 

number of items and what the proof is, so I would ask 

that pages 32 through 35 be recharged.

THE COURT:  32 through 35?  35 up to the asterisk?  

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  Yes.  

THE COURT:  State?  

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  As we all know, self-defense -- 

self-defense is one of our most complex, and, so, it's 

complex for us, and I think it's even --

THE COURT:  Okay.  I will reinstruct.

MR. TOFFOLON:  Can I have my 34 back?  

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  Was it 34?  

MR. TOFFOLON:  Yes.  

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  34.  Yeah.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  

(The bench conference was concluded.)

THE COURT:  The attorneys made an excellent point, 

and I agree that because I read back some of the 

instructions I should probably also read back another 

very important instruction, which is self-defense.  And, 

as Mr. -- Attorney Toffolon stated, it can be confusing, 

so I want to read it back to you one more time to make 

sure it's clear.  You will get a copy of this instruction 
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with you in the jury room, but I just want to read it one 

more time.  

If you determine, in accordance with the previous 

instructions, that the elements of either elevated 

aggravated assault, aggravated assault, or assault have 

been proven beyond a reasonable doubt, you must next 

consider the issue of self-defense.  In certain 

circumstances acts that otherwise might be criminal, 

including, in a few instances, use of deadly force may be 

justified when reasonably necessary to protect an 

individual.  

Deadly force is physical force that a person uses 

with the intent of causing, or which he knows creates a 

substantial risk of causing, death or serious bodily 

injury.  

A person is justified in using deadly force upon 

another person when he reasonably believes that the other 

person is about to use unlawful deadly force against him 

and he reasonably believes that his use of deadly force 

is necessary to defend himself.  

A person is never justified in using deadly force if 

he provokes the encounter leading to the use of deadly 

force or if he knows that he can retreat from the 

encounter with complete safety.  

Because the evidence generates an issue of whether 
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the defendant acted in self-defense, to support -- acted 

in self-defense, to support a conviction for either 

elevated aggravated assault, aggravated assault, or 

assault, the State must prove beyond a reasonable doubt 

that, A, with a purpose to cause physical harm to another 

person, the defendant provoked the encounter, or, B, the 

defendant knew he could retreat in complete safety from 

the encounter with Forrest Dale, or, C, the defendant 

knew that Forrest Dale was not about to use deadly force 

against him, or the defendant knew that his use of deadly 

force was not necessary to defend himself.  

If you find that although the issue of self-defense 

is presented and the State has proven any one or more of 

the above facts, either A, B, C, or D, beyond a 

reasonable doubt, then the State has met its burden of 

proving absence of self-defense and you should find the 

defendant guilty of either elevated aggravated assault, 

aggravated assault, or assault.  If the State has failed 

to prove any one of the above facts, once again, A, B, C, 

or D, beyond a reasonable doubt, then the State has not 

met its burden of proving absence of self-defense and you 

should find the defendant not guilty of elevated 

aggravated assault, aggravated assault, and assault.  

So that's the reinstruction on self-defense.  

So, when you have reached a verdict, knock on the 
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door.  Tell the jury officer that you have a verdict.  Do 

not tell the jury officer what the verdict is.  We will 

reassemble in the courtroom.  When you come in, the clerk 

will inquire whether you have reached a verdict.  If your 

answer is yes, the clerk will inquire whether you have 

found the defendant guilty or not guilty of the offenses 

of either elevated aggravated assault, aggravated 

assault, and/or assault.  

Ladies and gentlemen, good luck to you.  

(The jury retired to the jury room to commence 

deliberations at 2:55 p.m.)

THE COURT:  All right.  So --

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  1.  Defense 1.  Defense 2.  Did you 

have --

THE COURT:  You've got -- 

MR. TOFFOLON:  The disc.

THE COURT:  -- the Google map, I guess, the big 

photo, and the two -- 

MR. TOFFOLON:  Digital.

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  Thumb drive?  

THE COURT:  -- thumb drive, and the --

MR. TOFFOLON:  Disc.

MR. JUSKEWITCH:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  All right.  So I'll prepare -- I'll fix 

the typos here and have this put into the jury room, as 
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